
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

December 02, 2019 

10:00 AM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 02, 2019 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Organizational Meeting 

December 02, 2019 

10:00 AM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance  

 Colonel Rodney Meads, Chaplain - Camden County Sheriff's Office 

ITEM I. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM II. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM III. Consideration of the Agenda 

ITEM IV. Election of Chairman to the Board 

ITEM V. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board 

ITEM VI. Bond Approval 

A. Bond Approval - Ken Bowman 

ITEM VII. 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar 

A. Resolution Adopting Regular Meeting Schedule - Ken Bowman 

ITEM VIII. 2020 State Holiday Schedule 

A. 2020 State Holiday Schedule - Ken Bowman 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 02, 2019 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

ITEM IX. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. NC Cooperative Extension - Cameron Lowe 

B. Sheriff's Office - Brandon Blount 

C. Camden TDA Photo Contest - Donna Stewart 

ITEM X. Public Hearings 

A. Camden Plantation, Inc. Land Sale Agreement - Ken Bowman 

ITEM XI. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Library Lease - Ken Bowman 

ITEM XII. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Proclamation Recognizing Radon Action Month January 2020 - Ken Bowman 

B. NC Governor's Highway Safety Program Traffic Grant - Sheriff Jones 

C. Camden Solar Special Use Permit  Extension Request (One Year) - Dan Porter 

D. Commerce Park Electric Service - Ken Bowman 

E. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-12-01 Rezoning Application - Dan Porter 

ITEM XIII. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Senior Advisory Board - Sandra Duckwall (Reappointment) 

ITEM XIV. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019 

B. DMV Monthly Report 

C. Refunds Over $100.00 

D. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

E. Surplus Property Request - Sheriff's Office 

F. Resolution 2019-12-02 Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters 

G. State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program (SARF) 

ITEM XV. County Manager's Report 

ITEM XVI. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM XVII. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  December 02, 2019 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

A. Library Report 

B. Register of Deeds Report 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM  Closed Session - Personnel 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM XVIII. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM XIX. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Bond Approval 

 

Attachments: Bonds (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Bond approval for the following: 

~ Finance Officer - South Mills Fire Commission 

~ Finance Officer - South Camden Water & Sewer District 

~ Finance Officer - Joyce Creek Drainage District 

~ Finance Officer - Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission 

~ Finance Officer - Camden Tourism Development Authority 

~ Finance Officer - County of Camden 

~ Register of Deeds - County of Camden 

~ Sheriff - County of Camden 

~ Board of Commissioners - County of Camden 

~ Tax Assessor & Collector - County of Camden 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 5



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
s 

 (
25

76
 :

 B
o

n
d

 A
p

p
ro

va
l)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution Adopting Regular Meeting Schedule 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-12-01 Adopting A New Regular 

Meeting Schedule

 (DOCX) 

2020 Meeting Calendar (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Resolution adopting a new Board of Commissioners meeting schedule for 2020.  Regular 

meetings will continue to be held on the first Monday of the month at 7:00 PM.  When the first 

Monday falls on an observed holiday, the meeting will take place on the Tuesday following the 

holiday. 

Recommendation: 

Adoption of resolution. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 30



 
 

Resolution No. 2019-12-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

ADOPTING A NEW REGULAR MEETINGS SCHEDULE  

OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2020  

 

Whereas, N.C.G.S. 153A-40 authorizes the Camden County Board of Commissioners to adopt a resolution 

fixing the dates, time and place of its regular meetings and further requires a copy of such a resolution, after 

its adoption, to be posted on the courthouse bulletin board and a summary of it to be published at least ten 

(10) days before the first meeting to which the resolution is to apply; and 

 

Whereas, N.C.G.S. 143-318.12 requires the new meeting schedule to be filed with the Clerk to the Board 

of County Commissioners for at least seven (7) calendar days before the day of the first meeting held 

pursuant to the revised schedule and to post the schedule of regular meetings to the County’s Web Site; and 

 

Whereas, the Camden County Board of Commissioners wishes to adopt a new schedule of its regular Board 

meetings to be on the first Monday of the month.  When the first Monday falls on an observed holiday, the 

meeting will take place on the Tuesday following the holiday.   

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Camden County Board of Commissioners hereby adopts a new 

schedule of its regular Board meetings beginning January 1, 2020 after the Board has complied with the 

provisions of N.C.G.S. 153A-40 and N.C.G.S. 143-318.12 for posting and publishing this Resolution and 

the additional posting as provided herein. 

 

Be It Further Resolved, the regular meetings of the Camden County Board of Commissioners will 

continue to be held on Mondays  at 7:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of 

the Camden County Courthouse located at 117 N. Hwy 343, Camden, North Carolina. 

 

Be It Further Resolved, an additional meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners may be 

called in months where business necessitates a second meeting and other special meetings including Public 

Hearings may be called as allowed in the provisions of N.C.G.S. 153A-40 and N.C.G.S. 143-318.12. 

 

Adopted this the 2nd day of December, 2019. 

 

       

            

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 A

 N
ew

 R
eg

u
la

r 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 S
ch

ed
u

le
  (

25
71

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 R

eg
u

la
r 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 S

ch
ed

u
le

)



 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

2020 Regular Meeting Calendar  

 

 
MEETING DATE / TIME        AGENDA ITEMS DEADLINE 

  
Monday, January 6, 2020   7:00 PM     Monday, December 30, 2019  12:00 PM 

 Monday, February 3, 2020  7:00 PM     Tuesday, January 28, 2020  12:00 PM 

 Monday, March 2, 2020   7:00 PM     Tuesday, February 25, 2020  12:00 PM 

 Monday, April 6, 2020   7:00 PM     Tuesday, March 31, 2020   12:00 PM 

 Monday, May 4, 2020    7:00 PM     Tuesday, April 28, 2020   12:00 PM 

 Monday, June 1, 2020    7:00 PM     Tuesday, May 26, 2020   12:00 PM 

 Monday, July 6, 2020    7:00 PM     Tuesday, June 30, 2020   12:00 PM 

Monday, August 3, 2020   7:00 PM     Tuesday, July 28, 2020   12:00 PM 

 Tuesday, September 8, 2020  7:00 PM     Tuesday, September 1, 2020  12:00 PM 

 Monday, October 5, 2020   7:00 PM     Tuesday, September 29, 2020  12:00 PM 

 Monday, November 2, 2020  7:00 PM     Tuesday, October 27, 2020  12:00 PM 

 Monday, December 7, 2020  8:30 AM     Tuesday, December 1, 2020  12:00 PM 
      (Swearing-In of Newly Elected Officials and Organizational Meeting) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All regular meetings are held in the Historic Courtroom located at 

117 North 343 

Camden County, North Carolina 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
0 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 C

al
en

d
ar

  (
25

71
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 A

d
o

p
ti

n
g

 R
eg

u
la

r 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 S
ch

ed
u

le
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Human Resources 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2020 State Holiday Schedule 

 

Attachments: 2020 State Holiday Schedule (PDF) 

 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

8.A

Packet Pg. 33



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
0 

S
ta

te
 H

o
lid

ay
 S

ch
ed

u
le

  (
25

69
 :

 2
02

0 
S

ta
te

 H
o

lid
ay

 S
ch

ed
u

le
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Cameron Lowe, Cooperative Extension Director 

 NC Cooperative Extension 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NC Cooperative Extension - Cameron Lowe 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Cameron Lowe will introduce Camden's new 4-H agent, Tyrone Dillard. 

9.A

Packet Pg. 35



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 9.B 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sheriff's Office 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

The Sheriff's Office will present Certificates of Appreciation to: 

~ Kevin Winters of Performance Chevrolet 

~ Eddie Cartwright & Jimmy Bohn of Cartwright's Service Center 

~ Charlie Cartwright & Wilton McPherson of Camden Auto 

~ Steve Hallett of F&H Design 

~ Sergeant Steven Anderson of Nags Head Police Department 

9.B

Packet Pg. 36



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 9.C 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden TDA Photo Contest - Donna Stewart 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Donna Stewart will present the results of the Camden Tourism Development Authority Photo 

Contest. 

9.C

Packet Pg. 37



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden Plantation, Inc. Land Sale Agreement 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary_Camden Plantation (DOCX) 

Public Notice Daily Advance Camden County

 (DOC) 

Camden Purchase Agreement for Commercial 

Property 10-29-19 signed 

by buyer (PDF) 

 

See attached agenda summary, supporting documentation and recommendation. 

10.A

Packet Pg. 38



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

Meeting Date:   December 2, 2019 
 

Attachments:   Land Sale Agreement and Map 

  

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, County Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:    

Land Sale Agreement 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The applicant’s stated purpose for the project is to construct an economically viable, 
residential and commercial mixed-use development to serve Camden County, North 
Carolina, along the U.S. Route 17 corridor that satisfies all municipal development 
requirements for Smart Growth and contributes to the tax base of the County. 
 
As proposed, Camden Plantation will be developed in four phases involving the 
construction of approximately 1,750 new residential units, associated roads and 
utilities infrastructure, a commercial center with a minimum of 160,000 square feet 
of retail/commercial/office space, an 18-hole golf course, and other recreational 
amenities (tennis, swimming, trail and park system). Anticipated services to be 
provided include a grocery store and complimentary retail business, medical/dental 
offices, and general office space. The project will impact a total of 4,562 linear feet of 
waters of the United States and 28.90 acres of non-tidal wetlands, including the 
permanent loss of 27.96 acres of palustrine forested (PFO) wetlands and the 
conversion of 0.94 acres of PFO wetlands to palustrine emergent (PEM) wetlands. 
 
A number of alternatives were identified and evaluated by the applicant during the 
pre-application process including consideration of other properties, as well as the 
adjustment of onsite configurations resulting in the avoidance of an additional 4.43 
acres of permanent impacts to wetlands.  
 
The applicant proposes to offset the permanent impacts to approximately 27.96 
acres of palustrine forested wetlands (PFO) and conversion impacts to 
approximately 0.94 acres of PFO to palustrine emergent wetlands (PEM) through 
the purchase of non-tidal wetland credits from an approved mitigation bank at a 
ratio of 2:1 for PFO, and 1:1 for conversion from PFO to PEM. Additionally, the 
applicant proposes to preserve in perpetuity the remaining 17.24 acres of PFO 
wetlands on the property through the recordation of deed instruments. 
 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y_

C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

25
86

 :
 C

am
d

en
 P

la
n

ta
ti

o
n

, I
n

c.
 L

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



In light of the fact that Camden Plantation has been turned down by the Army Corps 
of Engineers to mitigate approximately 28 acres, as mentioned above, they are 
approaching the County in order to purchase up to 15 acres for the development of 
the commercial / retail segment of this planned development.  If approved the 
master plan will have to be modified and resubmitted for approval. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Pursuant to direction from the Camden County Commissioners, staff has negotiated 
an agreement by and between Camden County, North Carolina ("Seller") and 
Camden Plantation Properties, Inc. or assigns ("Buyer") to purchase up to 15 acres 
of county owned property at the intersection of US 17 and McPherson road for the 
amount of $10,000 per acre. 
 
The Board of Commissioners has determined the fair market value of the property is 
twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) per acre. The proposed consideration to be 
received by the County is ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per acre up to one 
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) cash, plus additional consideration in the 
form of infrastructure improvement.   
 
The infrastructure improvement is development of a road between the subject 
property and the remainder the county’s property to the east.  The improvement is 
estimated to exceed $150,000 and will substantially increase the value of the 
surrounding county owned property.  Improvement will commence within 1 year 
after the later of (i) the date of Closing or (ii) the date upon which Buyer receives all 
necessary approvals for development of the Property as provided for by law, and 
shall thereafter diligently pursue completion of such road. 
 
 
Recommend: Approval   
 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y_

C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

25
86

 :
 C

am
d

en
 P

la
n

ta
ti

o
n

, I
n

c.
 L

an
d

 S
al

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
- 

K
en

 B
o

w
m

an
)



                                                                                                 FAX COVER SHEET 

 

County of Camden 

P.O. Box 190 

117 North 343 

Camden, NC 27921 

252-338-1919 (Voice) 

252-333-1603 (FAX) 

 

SEND TO:                                                      FROM: Dan Porter/Planning Department 

                                                                                     Director 

 

The Daily Advance 

 

 

FAX NO:  252-335-1968                              Date:   11/19/2019 

 

URGENT ___X___                      Reply ASAP_____      Please Comment _______ 

 

Review _______ 

 

RE:  Account #2100210 

 

Number of Pages:   2 

 

Please publish the following Public Notice in the Friday, November 22, 2019 edition 

of the Daily Advance. 

 

Any questions, please call Dan Porter at 338-1919 ext. 263. 

 

1.  Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1(d) notice is hereby given Camden County 

intends to convey the following described property in fee simple to Camden Plantation 

Properties as the result of a privately negotiated sale for the purposes of aiding and 

encouraging a commercial enterprise within Camden County: 

 

“Up to 15 acres of County owned property located at the intersection of McPherson Road 

and U.S. Highway 17 North. 

 

Prior to final determination of this conveyance, the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners will conduct a public hearing in the Historic Camden County Courthouse 

to receive public comments, at 10:00 A.M., during the regularly scheduled Board of 

Commissioners meeting on Monday, December 2, 2019. 

 

The Board of Commissioners has determined the fair market value of the property is 

twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) per acre. The proposed consideration to be received by 

the County is ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per acre up to one hundred fifty thousand 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 N

o
ti

ce
 D

ai
ly

 A
d

va
n

ce
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

  (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

- 
K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



dollars ($150,000) cash, plus additional consideration in the form of infrastructure 

improvement.   

 

The infrastructure improvement is development of a road between the subject property 

and the remainder the county’s property to the east.  The improvement is estimated to 

exceed $150,000 and will substantially increase the value of the surrounding county 

owned property.  Improvement will commence within 1 year after the later of (i) the date 

of Closing or (ii) the date upon which Buyer receives all necessary approvals for 

development of the Property as provided for by law, and shall thereafter diligently pursue 

completion of such road. 

     

It is currently the intention of the Board of Commissioners to approve this conveyance on 

the terms stated herein. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 N

o
ti

ce
 D

ai
ly

 A
d

va
n

ce
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

  (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

- 
K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



LAND SALE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of October 29, 2019, by and 
between Camden County, North Carolina ("Seller") and Camden Plantation 
Properties, Inc. or assigns ("Buyer").

In consideration of Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (the 
"Deposit"), to be paid by Buyer to Seller within two business days after 
full execution, approval, and delivery of this Agreement (the "Effective 
Date"), the parties agree as follows:

1. Purchase.  Seller shall sell and Buyer shall purchase up to 15 acres 
of the land owned by Seller located in Camden County, North Carolina (the 
"Locality") and described on Exhibit A. (the "Property").  The exact 
configuration and legal description for the Property shall be determined 
prior to Closing.  The Property shall include all easements, rights of 
way, appurtenances, and privileges associated with the Property; any 
permits, approvals, and prepaid fees associated with the Property; and all 
of Seller's rights, if any, in any plats, plans, and surveys related to 
each Section.

2. Purchase Price.  The purchase price of the Property (the "Purchase 
Price") shall be Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00), per acre, 
payable (less the Deposit and any applicable prorations) at Closing. 

3. Closing And Prorations.  Closing on the Property ("Closing") shall be 
held within forty five (45) days after Buyer gives notice to Seller that 
the subdivision plat for the Property is ready for recordation and all 
conditions are satisfied (the "Closing Date").  Closing shall be at 
Buyer’s attorney’s office or as mutually agreed by the parties.  All real 
estate taxes and other items of income or expense for the Property shall 
be prorated as of the Closing Date.  Seller shall pay all costs of 
preparing the Deed, any grantor's tax, its own attorney's fees, any roll-
back or similar taxes for the Property relating to any period prior to 
Closing, and other costs normally paid by the seller in similar 
transactions.  Buyer shall pay all other costs and taxes for recording the 
Deed, any mortgage securing any loan, its own attorney's fees and other 
costs and expenses normally paid by the buyer in similar transactions.  
Possession shall be delivered at Closing.  

4. Deposit.  Seller shall hold the Deposit in a federally insured 
account pending Closing.  The Deposit shall be applied to the Purchase 
Price at Closing.  If Buyer terminates this Agreement due to a contingency 
or Seller's default, the Deposit shall be immediately paid to Buyer.  If 
Seller terminates this Agreement due to Buyer's default, the Deposit shall 
be retained by Seller.

5. Conditions to Closing.  Buyer's obligations are contingent on the 
conditions below.  Buyer may waive any condition.  If any condition is not 
satisfied by Closing or any other indicated date, Buyer may delay Closing 
until the condition is satisfied or terminate this Agreement.

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



a. Title.  Buyer shall have received a commitment (the "Title 
Commitment") from a title company of Buyer's choice, insuring good 
and marketable title to the Property to the limits selected by 
Buyer, at standard rates, free of all exceptions, except for (A) the 
lien for real estate taxes not yet due and payable, and (B) other 
title matters approved in writing by Buyer (the "Permitted 
Exceptions").  The Title Commitment shall establish to Buyer's 
reasonable satisfaction the legal description and acreage of the 
Property, not contain an exception to survey, and include such 
endorsements as Buyer deems appropriate, including access to public 
road.  All conditions under the Title Commitment shall have been 
satisfied and the Title Commitment shall be in full effect for the 
applicable Section at each Closing.  Buyer shall order the Title 
Commitment within thirty days after execution of this Agreement and 
delivery of all items by Seller and shall use reasonable efforts to 
satisfy the Title Commitment requirements.

b. Due Diligence.  For a period of 180 days after the Effective Date 
(the "Due Diligence Period"), Buyer may conduct a due diligence 
study of the Property (the "Due Diligence Study") which may include 
investigation and testing of such matters as Buyer deems material to 
the value of the Property and its suitability for Buyer's intended 
use(s), including without limitation, soil borings, wetlands 
delineations, environmental tests and reports and other analyses and 
tests which Buyer deems appropriate. Buyer and its agents and 
contractors may enter the Property at any time prior to Closing to 
inspect the Property and conduct tests.  All third-party reports and 
results of due diligence study as it relates to the physical 
condition and title to the Property will be made available to the 
seller upon written request. Buyer may terminate this Agreement by 
giving Seller notice prior to the end of the Due Diligence Period if 
Buyer is not satisfied, in its sole discretion, with the results of 
the Due Diligence Study.

c. Condemnation.  Seller shall not have received any notice of a 
pending or contemplated condemnation affecting any of the Property.  
If prior to Closing, any of the Property is condemned or proposed to 
be condemned, Seller shall promptly notify Buyer, and Buyer may (i) 
close and receive the condemnation proceeds, or (ii) close with an 
equitable reduction in the Purchase Price, or (iii) terminate this 
Agreement.

d. Governmental issues.  No moratoria shall be in effect which would 
materially affect the development of the Property or construction of 
intended improvements on the Property, and no agreement with the 
Locality for restrictions, cash proffers, or other payments shall 
apply to the Property, except as approved in writing by Buyer.

e. Representations, warranties, and obligations.  All of the 
representations and warranties of Seller in this Agreement shall be 
true and correct in all material respects, and Seller shall have 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



fully and timely performed all of Seller's obligations under this 
Agreement up to the date of each Closing.

f. Wetlands.  Buyer shall have received an acceptable wetlands 
determination and approval of any wetlands impacts for the Property, 
subject only to terms and conditions approved in writing by Buyer.

g. Utilities.  Public Water utilities for the development, 
construction, and occupancy of the Property shall be available at 
the Property in sufficient capacities to serve the Property as it is 
to be developed for its intended use.

h. Subdivision.  Buyer shall have obtained an approved subdivision plat 
for the Property, and all required approvals from the Locality and 
any other required authority, and satisfaction of all conditions or 
contingencies for the immediate recordation of the subdivision plat, 
subject only to terms and conditions approved in writing by Buyer.

i. Approvals.  This Agreement shall have been approved by all necessary 
authorities for Seller to be able to properly convey the Property.

j. Development of Property.  Buyer shall have received all approvals 
necessary to develop the Property in the manner intended by Buyer, 
subject only to terms and conditions acceptable to Buyer and Seller.  
Such approvals shall include, without limitation, approval of any 
master plan, construction plans, subdivision plats, conceptual plans 
and any other plans necessary to develop the Property as intended.

k. Development of Adjacent Property.  Buyer shall have received all 
approvals necessary to develop the property owned by Buyer in the 
development known as Camden Plantation located near the Property 
(the "Buyer's Property") in the manner intended by Buyer, subject 
only to terms and conditions acceptable to Buyer and Seller.  Such 
approvals shall include, without limitation, approval of a revised 
master plan, construction plans, subdivision plats, conceptual plans 
and any other plans necessary to develop the Buyer's Property as 
intended.

l. Modification and Extension of Development Agreement.  The 
Development Agreement filed in Camden County with the Recorder of 
Deeds in Book 292, Page 624 has been extended and modified to 
acknowledge the addition of portions of the Property and the revised 
master plan, among other things, with such extension and 
modification subject only to terms and conditions acceptable to 
Buyer and Seller.

6. Seller's Obligations.  In addition to its other obligations, Seller 
shall do the following:

a. Seller shall deliver to Buyer within five business days after 
request, at no cost to Buyer, copies of all documents and 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



information relating to the Property which Buyer requests, to the 
extent in the possession of or reasonably available to Seller.

b. Seller shall provide Buyer everything required by the Title Company 
to issue a title policy at each Closing subject only to the 
Permitted Exceptions.

c. At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a properly executed 
General Warranty Deed with English Covenants of Title conveying good 
and marketable title to the Property, subject only to the Permitted 
Exceptions.

d. Seller shall use its best efforts to cause all conditions of Closing 
within its control to be promptly satisfied, including cooperating 
in filing any applications or requests for approval in connection 
with Buyer's Due Diligence Study and other conditions of Closing.

7. Seller's Representations.  Seller represents and warrants to Buyer as 
follows:

a. Seller is the owner of good and marketable title to the Property, 
subject only to utility easements and other matters that do not 
adversely and materially affect the use and development of the 
Property for its intended purpose.

b. The Property is not subject to a property owners or similar 
association or to a special tax district other than the South Mills 
Volunteer Fire District Tax.

c. No roll-back or similar taxes will be payable in connection with the 
Property relating to any period in which Seller owned the Property.

d. Seller is not aware of and has received no notice of any violation 
of any environmental law in connection with the Property. To the 
best of Seller's knowledge, the Property has not been used to 
generate, manufacture, refine, transport, treat, store, handle, 
dispose, transfer, produce or process any hazardous substance.

e. Seller is not a "foreign person," as defined in Section 1445 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

f. No proffers, impact fees, tap fees, or other similar fees or amounts 
are currently payable in connection with the Property.

8. Risk Of Loss.  Seller shall bear all risk of loss to the Property 
until Closing.

9. Commissions.  Neither party has dealt with any agent or broker in 
bringing about this Agreement.  Each party shall indemnify and hold the 
other harmless from all claims of other agents or brokers resulting from 
its having worked through such other agents or brokers.

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



10. Default.  Buyer shall not be in default unless it fails to perform 
within ten days (for a monetary matter) or thirty days (for a nonmonetary 
matter) after notice.  If Buyer fails to close in breach of this 
Agreement, Seller's sole remedy shall be to receive the Deposit as 
liquidated damages, the parties agreeing that damages in such an event 
would be difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain and that the Deposit 
represents a reasonable liquidation of such potential damages.

11. Notice.  All notices under this Agreement, including change of 
address, shall be in writing and shall be deemed given (i) when hand 
delivered, (ii) one business day after being delivered to a nationally 
recognized overnight delivery service for next business day delivery, 
(iii) three business days after being deposited in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid via first class mail, or (iv) one business day after being 
sent by email (unless sender receives a notice of non-delivery during that 
time period) or upon confirmed receipt, whichever is earlier, and in all 
events addressed as follows:

If to Seller: If to Buyer:

Camden County, North Carolina Camden Plantation Properties, Inc.
_____________________________ 544 Newtown Rd, Ste 128
_____________________________ Virginia Beach, VA  23462
ATTN:________________________ Attn: General Counsel

Email:_______________________ Email: LegalNotices@BoydHomes.com

The parties may, at any time, change their notice address by giving notice 
to all other parties.  In addition to the above, any written notice given 
in any manner shall be effective, if not already deemed effective, when 
actually received.

12. Assignment.  Buyer may assign any of its rights under this Agreement 
to any entity(ies) under common control with Buyer.  This Agreement shall 
be binding upon, and benefit, the successors and assigns of the parties.  
No person not a party to this Agreement, other than a permitted successor 
or assign, shall be entitled to the benefit of any provision of this 
Agreement.

13. Announcement.  Seller shall not make any announcement or statement 
about this Agreement or transaction without Buyer's approval.

14. Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced 
under North Carolina law.  The headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and are not a part of the agreement of the parties, nor 
shall they be used to interpret this Agreement.  In this Agreement, the 
singular includes the plural, the plural includes the singular, and the 
use of any gender includes any other gender.  The term "person" includes 
both natural persons, entities, and governmental agencies, departments, 
and other entities.  If any part of this Agreement is unenforceable, the 
remainder shall be construed and enforced as if the unenforceable part had 
not been in this Agreement.  The provisions of this Agreement may not be 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



modified or waived, except by a written instrument, signed by the parties.  
This Agreement shall survive Closing.

15. Holidays, Etc.  If any deadline under this Agreement falls on a 
nonbusiness day, the deadline shall be extended to the next business day.

16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is a complete agreement of the 
parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, merging and 
replacing all prior negotiations, offers, representations, warranties and 
agreements.  No course of dealing between the parties, no usage of trade, 
and no external evidence shall be used to supplement or modify this 
Agreement.  All exhibits attached to or referenced in this Agreement shall 
be incorporated into this Agreement as fully as if contained in the body 
of this Agreement.

17. Execution.  This Agreement may be offered and accepted by facsimile.  
Electronic signatures shall have the same effect as, and be considered, 
original signatures for purposes of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and all of which together shall constitute a single agreement.

18. Additional Provisions.  

a. Buyer shall commence development of the drive lane between the 
Property and the remainder of the property owned by Seller to the 
east substantially as shown on Exhibit A within 1 year after the 
later of (i) the date of Closing or (ii) the date upon which Buyer 
receives all necessary approvals for development of the Property, 
and shall thereafter diligently pursue completion of such drive 
lane.  

b. Buyer shall diligently pursue all approvals related to the 
development of the Property.

This offer shall expire, if not accepted and returned to Buyer by 5:00 
p.m. EST on November 20, 2019.

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



Seller: Buyer:

Camden County, North Carolina Camden Plantation Properties, Inc.

By__________________________ By__________________________
                      Date                David S. Rudiger, President

By__________________________
                      Date

By__________________________
                      Date

10/29/19

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



Exhibit A

A portion of the land located in Camden County, North Carolina, owned by 
Camden County, North Carolina known as GPIN 017071006768430000 
approximately located in the area shown below as “Property Area = +/- 
13.23 AC”.

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 1

0-
29

-1
9 

si
g

n
ed

 b
y 

b
u

ye
r 

 (
25

86
 :

 C
am

d
en

 P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
, I

n
c.

 L
an

d
 S

al
e



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Other Matters 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Library Lease - Ken Bowman 

 

Attachments: Library Lease Rev 11 25 19 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

The Library Lease is being re-submitted for review and approval. The lease is identical to the 

previous one that was approved by the Board of Commissioners effective October 1, 2019 except 

for the following modification; 

Section 3 which addressed Options to Renew addressed the tenant’s right (Camden County) to 

renew for a successive term (the current term is 2 years). In this lease such renewal right no 

longer exists. The County Attorney has discussed this with Mr William Brumsey, Wilport’s 

Attorney, and this is the agreement they decided would work for both parties. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

11.A

Packet Pg. 51



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 R
ev

 1
1 

25
 1

9 
 (

25
87

 :
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

 -
 K

en
 B

o
w

m
an

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 12.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Proclamation - Radon Action Month January 2020 

 

Attachments: Proclamation Request (PDF) 

RadonandLungCancerFactsheet(color)Rev-Final (1)

 (PDF) 

Proclamation - Radon Action Month (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

See attached request and supporting documentation. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

12.A

Packet Pg. 65



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

25
73

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 R

ad
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

o
n

th
 J

an
u

ar
y 

20
20

)



How does radon get into a 
home? Radon can rise from the 
rocks in the ground, through the 
soil, and to the air above. It comes 
into your home through cracks 
and holes in the foundation. The 
radon becomes trapped in your 
home. This can happen in new and 
old homes, homes with or without 
basements, and in high-rise and  
multi-family buildings. Underground  
well water can transport radon from  
the soil into the house.

Where is radon found in N.C.? 
Nearly one out of every 15 homes in  
the U.S. is likely to have a high level 
of radon. Homes in all 100 counties 

of N.C. have tested at high levels 
for radon. The only way to know if 
your home has a radon problem is 

to test it. (continued )

Safe at Home: Preventing Lung Cancer 
BY REDUCING RADON IN THE HOME

What is radon? Radon is 
a gas that you cannot see, smell 
or taste. It comes from the decay 
of radioactive elements (such as 
uranium, thorium and radium) in soil 
and groundwater.

What are your chances for 
getting lung cancer from 
radon? Each one of the following 
influences your risk:
1. Level of radon in your home; 
2. The amount of time you 

spend in your home;
3. If you are a smoker of tobacco 

or have ever smoked tobacco; 
and

4. If you are exposed to secondhand 
smoke.

Why should I be 
concerned about radon? 

Breathing in radon is the second 
leading cause of lung cancer after 
smoking. Radon is the likely cause 

of more than 21,000 lung cancer deaths 
each year in the U.S. In 2015, lung cancer was 

the leading cause of cancer deaths in N.C.

How does radon cause lung 
cancer? Radon gas decays into 

radioactive particles that can get 
trapped in your lungs when you 

breathe. These particles break down 
and release small bursts of energy. 

This can damage lung tissue and 
lead to lung cancer over the course of 

your lifetime. Not everyone exposed to 
high levels of radon will develop lung cancer, 
however the risk for lung cancer is increased.

12.A.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ad
o

n
an

d
L

u
n

g
C

an
ce

rF
ac

ts
h

ee
t(

co
lo

r)
R

ev
-F

in
al

 (
1)

  (
25

73
 :

 P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
 -

 R
ad

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 M
o

n
th

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

20
)



Is radon only measured 
in homes? No. Radon can get
into any type of building. You and 
your family are most likely to be 
exposed at home because you 
spend most of your time there.

What is considered a 
high level of radon in 
the home? The amount of
radon in the air is measured in 
“picocuries per liter of air,” or 
“pCi/L.” A radon level in the 
home between 2 and 4 pCi/L is 
considered moderate risk and 
over 4 pCi/L is considered high 
risk for your health.

How do I fix my home 
if the test shows there 
is a high level of radon 
in water? The N.C Division
of Public Health recommends 

testing well water for radon. 
Its experts say you should fix 
well water that tests high for 

radon. If the radon level is high 
in the well water, a second test 

for other types of radioactive 
particles like uranium and 

radium should be done. Select 
a contractor who is trained to 

fix radon problems. Contact 
your county health department’s 

environmental health program 
for more information.

I am buying/selling a 
home. How do I get a 
property tested for radon?  
There are no laws in N.C. regarding 
radon testing. The N.C. Radon 
Program recommends that you hire 
a certified radon contractor. This will 
give you reliable test results quickly. If 
you get your water from a well, you can test 
your groundwater for radon with a certified 
laboratory. Visit www.ncradon.org to find a 
certified radon tester.

What if the radon levels are 
high in my home? Can my 
home be fixed? The EPA (U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency) 
recommends fixing homes that have 
an average radon level over 4 pCi/L. 
The EPA suggests you consider fixing 
your home if it tests between 2 and 4 
pCi/L. Most homes can easily be fixed 
to bring the radon levels below 4 pCi/L. 
Lowering high radon levels requires special 
knowledge and skills. Pick a contractor who 
is trained to fix radon problems. The National 
Radon Proficiency Program or the National 
Radon Safety Board certifies trained contractors. 
Visit www.ncradon.org for links. 

What will fixing my  
home cost me? In 2017,

the average cost for fixing a radon  
problem in an existing home was 

$1,500. The average cost to include a 
radon reduction system when building 

a new home was $800. The cost for 
a private well water radon treatment 

system ranges between $1,500 - $5,000.
Visit www.ncradon.org to learn more about 

building Radon Resistant New Construction.

Will a radon reduction system  
impact the sale of my home?

Radon reduction systems have been 
installed in homes across N.C. since 
1996. It is commonplace for national 

home building companies to install 
Radon Resistant New Construction 
in their new homes. Having a radon 

system in your home has not caused 
any problems for home sales.

 NC Cancer Plan website: http://publichealth.nc.gov/chronicdiseaseandinjury/cancerpreventionandcontrol/docs/ComprehensiveCancerControlPlan-2014-2020.pdf  
N.C. Department of Health and Human Services  |  Division of Public Health

www.ncdhhs.gov  |  http://publichealth.nc.gov  |  N.C. DHHS is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 4/2017

NORTH CAROLINA

RADIATION PROTECTIONNC Real Estate Commission

12.A.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ad
o

n
an

d
L

u
n

g
C

an
ce

rF
ac

ts
h

ee
t(

co
lo

r)
R

ev
-F

in
al

 (
1)

  (
25

73
 :

 P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
 -

 R
ad

o
n

 A
ct

io
n

 M
o

n
th

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

20
)



 
 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 
Proclamation In Support of 

National Radon Action Month 
 

WHEREAS, radon is a colorless, odorless, radioactive gas that may threaten the health of our 
citizens and their families; 
 
WHEREAS, radon is the second leading cause of lung cancer in the U.S. and is the leading cause of 
lung cancer in non-smokers;  
 
WHEREAS, the National Academy of Sciences estimates that up to 21,000 lung cancer deaths occur 
in the United States each year; 
 
WHEREAS, radon is found in one in 15 homes across the U.S. have elevated radon 
levels; 
 
WHEREAS, any home may have elevated levels of radon, even if neighboring homes do not, and living 

in a home with an average radon level of 4 picocuries per liter of air poses a similar risk of developing 

lung cancer as smoking half a pack of cigarettes a day; and 

 
WHEREAS, testing for radon is simple and inexpensive and radon problems can be fixed; 
 
WHEREAS, Camden County, the U.S. Surgeon General, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
the NC Department of Health and Human Services’ NC Radon Program and the North Carolina 
Advisory Committee on Cancer Coordination and Control support efforts to encourage homeowners 
to test their homes for radon, have elevated levels of radon reduced; 
 
WHEREAS, many residents in Camden County don’t know about radon, yet need to know, for the safety 

and health of their families and a proclamation of National Radon Action Month is an opportunity to 

educate individuals on the available measures to reduce radon; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Camden County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim: 
 
JANUARY 2020 as National Radon Action Month in Camden County, North Carolina.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners on this 2nd day of December, 2019. 
 
 

________________________________   
      Tom White, Chairman 
      Camden County Board of Commissioners 
   

ATTEST: 
 
      
Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
        

12.A.c

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 R

ad
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

o
n

th
  (

25
73

 :
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

 -
 R

ad
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

o
n

th
 J

an
u

ar
y 

20
20

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 12.B 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NC Governor's Highway Safety Program Traffic Grant - 

Sheriff Jones 

 

Attachments: Traffic Grant (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Sheriff Jones will present the attached information concerning the NC Governor's Highway 

Safety Program Traffic Grant. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

12.B

Packet Pg. 70



12.B.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

25
82

 :
 N

C
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r'
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

Jo
n

es
)



12.B.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

25
82

 :
 N

C
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r'
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

Jo
n

es
)



12.B.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

25
82

 :
 N

C
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r'
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

Jo
n

es
)



12.B.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

25
82

 :
 N

C
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r'
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

Jo
n

es
)



12.B.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 G

ra
n

t 
 (

25
82

 :
 N

C
 G

o
ve

rn
o

r'
s 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f 

Jo
n

es
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 12.C 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden Solar Special Use Permit - Extension Request (One 

Year) 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet SUP Camden Solar

 (DOC) 

Extension Request (PDF) 

 

See attached summary, supporting documentation and staff recommendation.   

12.C

Packet Pg. 76



            
      

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
        

   
Meeting Date:   December 2, 2019 

Attachments:   SUP Camden Solar/ BayWa r.e. letter/ 

                                    Dominion Energy letter 

     

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Request for 1 year extension of      Special Use Permit – Camden 

Solar   (UDO 2017-10-01)  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The Special Use Permit (UDO 2017-10-01) for Camden Solar was approved by the 

Board of Commissioners on January 8, 2017.  In accordance with Article 151.2.3.22 (I) a 

Special Use Permit shall expire and become null and void two years after the date of 

issuance if; 1) the authorized use has not commenced; 2) no substantial construction 

activity has taken place or: 3) Construction activities have started but the value of all 

construction activity after two years is less than five per cent of the estimated total cost of 

construction.  In accordance with Article 151.2.3.22(I.3) of the Unified Development 

Ordinance (Attached) BayWa R.E. Development, LLC, current project owner of Camden 

Solar is requesting a one year extension of the Special Use Permit (UDO 2017-10-01) to 

January 8, 2021.    

 

Based on the letter from Dominion Energy and the completion of Electrical upgrades 

adjacent to the property, staff feels that in accordance with attached UDO article that the 

applicant has proceeded towards completion of construction in good faith and with due 

diligence.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Recommend Approval of a One Year extension of Special Use Permit                       

(UDO 2017-10-01) for Camden Solar, LLC to expire January 8, 2021. 
 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

S
U

P
 C

am
d

en
 S

o
la

r 
 (

25
79

 :
 C

am
d

en
 S

o
la

r 
S

p
ec

ia
l U

se
 P

er
m

it
 -

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 R
eq

u
es

t 
(O

n
e 

Y
ea

r)
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
25

79
 :

 C
am

d
en

 S
o

la
r 

S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

(O
n

e 
Y

ea
r)

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 12.D 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Commerce Park Electric Service 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Commerce Park Electrical Service

 (DOCX) 

Status of electrical in Commerce Park email (PDF) 

AEMC Contract (DOC) 

Budget Amendment (PDF) 

 

See attached agenda summary, supporting documentation and recommendation. 

12.D

Packet Pg. 95



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Meeting Date:  December 2. 2019 
 

Attachments:  Contract for Installation and  

                          E-mail cost estimate 

  

Submitted By: Dan Porter 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Commerce Park Electrical Service 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

At the time the Commerce Park was initially developed the electrical service was 

installed into the property and transformer cabinets set in the median of the entrance road.  

The sale and development of the property by WAO garage at the end of Opportunity Dr. 

requires that we now install electrical service to the end of that road, and Albemarle 

Electric requires that the service be looped back up the road to provide redundancy. 

 

It is important to note that this service is not an incentive to an individual business. This 

service will have service transformers located at a few locations on each side of the road 

in order to provide for connections of future businesses in the park. 

 

The cost for this installation is $82,125.18.  The anticipated funding source is Fund 

Balance Reserves. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approval 

 

Motion: To authorize County Manager to execute contract with Albemarle 

Electric to install electrical service along Opportunity Dr. in the Camden County 

Commerce Park. 

 

 

12.D.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
E

le
ct

ri
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

  (
25

85
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

S
er

vi
ce

)



12.D.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
tu

s 
o

f 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 in
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

em
ai

l  
(2

58
5 

: 
C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



12.D.b

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
tu

s 
o

f 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 in
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

em
ai

l  
(2

58
5 

: 
C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



12.D.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
tu

s 
o

f 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 in
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

em
ai

l  
(2

58
5 

: 
C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



 1 

Albemarle Electric Membership Corporation 
 

Post Office Box 69    Hertford, North Carolina    27944-0069 

Telephone 252-426-5735      Toll Free 1-800-215-9915      Fax 252-426-8270 

 

 

CONTRACT FOR INSTALLATION OF UNDERGROUND PRIMARY ELECTRIC FACILITIES 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this the 2nd day of December, 2019 by and between 

ALBEMARLE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION  

(hereinafter referred to as Albemarle EMC) located in Perquimans County, Hertford, North Carolina 

and Camden County , North Carolina, (hereinafter referred to as the Member); 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 THAT WHEREAS the Member is the owner of land in Camden County, North Carolina; 

described in the deed recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 126 in the Office of the Register of Deeds of 

Camden County, North Carolina; and 

 WHEREAS the Member has requested that Albemarle EMC install underground primary 

electric facilities within the above described property along such pathways as shall be designated by 

the Member and approved by Albemarle EMC; and  

 WHEREAS installation of underground primary electric facilities will require trenching of the 

land within said pathways; and 

 WHEREAS Albemarle EMC is prepared to install such underground primary electric 

facilities, but has requested the disclosure by the Member of all underground obstructions in the 

aforesaid pathways; and 

 WHEREAS Albemarle EMC and the Member wish to set down the terms of their agreement 

regarding the installation of said underground primary electric facilities. 

  

 

 

12.D.c

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

E
M

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

25
85

 :
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between Albemarle EMC and the Member that: 

1. The Member along with the Cooperative, will choose pathways for the installation of the 

underground primary electric facilities to be installed by Albemarle EMC and will provide a 

sketch of the property referred to above clearly indicating the pathways upon said property and 

upon approval of said pathways by Albemarle EMC, Albemarle EMC will install underground 

primary electric facilities within said pathways. 

2. The Member shall pay to Albemarle EMC the cost of installation according to a schedule of costs 

adopted by the board of directors of Albemarle EMC prior to installation of the underground 

primary electric facilities. We don’t normally pay until the work is complete 

3. The Member shall be responsible and liable for all damage which occurs to underground 

obstructions resulting from the failure of the Member to expose such underground 

obstructions and shall hold Albemarle EMC harmless for the same.   Initial__________ 

4. If the Member shall pave by concrete, asphalt or otherwise any roadway or sidewalk before the 

aforesaid underground primary electric facilities are installed, the Member shall place within the 

pathway an appropriately sized PVC pipe at least 36 inches in depth under the roadway or sidewalk 

with the ends of said pipe being clearly marked.  Albemarle EMC will trench to those designated 

end points. 

5. If the trenching to install the underground primary electric facilities requires Albemarle EMC to 

cross a prepared area of ground (for example, a lawn or yard) of the Member, the Member shall 

bear the sole responsibility for and expense of restoring the ground to its former condition. 

6. If overhead primary electric facilities are being replaced by underground primary electric facilities 

at the request of the Member or if an existing underground primary electric facility is being piped 

for any reason, the Member hereby releases Albemarle EMC from all liability for damages to 

existing concrete or paved sidewalks, roadways and/or driveways resulting from the installation of 

the aforesaid underground primary electric facilities and/or piping, and will hold Albemarle EMC 

harmless for the same. 

12.D.c

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

E
M

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

25
85

 :
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



 3 

7. This agreement shall remain in effect for all underground installations in the subdivision of the 

Member. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Albemarle EMC and the Member have executed this agreement. 

 

ALBEMARLE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION 

 

By:          

       

MEMBER SIGNATURE 

By:          

 

 

 

 

 

 

March, 2006 

12.D.c

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

E
M

C
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

25
85

 :
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

25
85

 :
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
S

er
vi

ce
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 12.E 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing Ordinance 2019-12-01 Rezoning 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-12-01 

Krainiak (DOC) 

Krainiak Rezoning Findings (DOCX) 

Supporting documents (PDF) 

2019-12-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Krainiak

 (DOC) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

12.E

Packet Pg. 104



             

     
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
        
Meeting Date:   December 2, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Set Public Hearing Ordinance 2019-12-01; Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-10-24) 

for RKRAIN LLC (Robert Krainiak) 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Robert Krainiak (RKRAIN LLC (owner)) and Sean Robey (agent for applicant) met with Planning Staff to rezone 

approximately 25 acres (lots 9-28 and a portion of lot 29) of Camden Business Park located off U.S. 158 from 

Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR).   Neighborhood meeting held October 21, 2019 at the 

Camden Library.   The application for rezoning was heard by the Camden County Planning Board at their November 

20, 2019 meeting and after discussion with applicant and staff, Planning Board made the following motions:  (All 

motions passed on a 6-0 vote.) 

   

1.  Motion made to approve Consistency Statement as follows:  

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan in that the CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has property identified as Industrial; also 

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent and consistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012); 

 

Inconsistent as Future Land Use Map shows the property designated as Mixed Use Employment which based on the 

description (see Attachment A) prohibits residential development.    

 

Consistent as based on the Vision Statement new development will be focused within targeted core areas and the 

Camden Village Core Area Action Strategies promotes the 158 corridor for new mixed use and higher density 

development.  Property located within the 1 mile buffer of Core Village where county encouraging higher density 

housing mix.    

 

2. Motion made to recommend approval of proposed rezoning application (UDO 2019-10-24) to rezone 

properties from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential as rezoning request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as based on the Vision Statement new development will be 

focused within targeted core areas and the Camden Village Core Area Action Strategies promotes the U.S. 

158 corridor for new mixed use and higher density development.  Property located within the 1 mile buffer 

of Core Village where county encouraging higher density housing mix.     

 

3. Motion made Motion to amend Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the 24 acres from Mixed-

Use Employment to Village Mixed Use.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

- Set Public Hearing for January 6, 2020 

12.E.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
K

ra
in

ia
k 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

UDO 2019-10-24 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2019-10-24 

Project Name; N/A 

PIN:     See attached list 

Applicant:   Robert Krainiak                                                                                      

Address:   105 Havenwood Dr. 

                                    Camden, NC 

 Phone:   (252) 599-7185 

 Email:     

Agent for Applicant:      Eastern Carolina  

    Engineering, Sean  

    Robey  

 Address:              

 Phone:             (252) 335-1888 

 Email:     

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

 

10/21/2019                    Neighborhood       

11/20/2019                         Planning Board 

 

 Application Received: 10/15/2019 

By:  Dave Parks, Permit Officer 

 

Application Fee paid:  $800.00 Check #34759 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed’s 

C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use, CAMA Future Land 

Use and Suitability Map, and Floodplain 

Maps 

D. Letter from County on capacity/availability 

of Water and Sewer 

E. Zoning Comparison HC and VR 

F. Summary of Neighborhood Meeting 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Rezone approximately 25 acres (Lots 9-28 and a portion of 29 in Camden Business Park) 

from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR). 

 

From:   Highway Commercial (HC)  – Article 151.3.5.6 (Purpose Statement)  

 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, US 

17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as large 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic.  The district also accommodates 

agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special use permit. New 

development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral vehicular and pedestrian 

access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-connected transportation 

system.  New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along the major roadway, or is 

fully screened from view.  Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot lines shared with adjacent 

residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and multi-family developments in 

the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5:  

Development Standards. 

 

 

To:  Village Residential (VR) – Article 151.3.5.6 (Purpose Statement) 

 

The Village Residential (VR) district is established to accommodate a wide range of residential and 

institutional use types at modest densities on lots within and adjacent to designated village centers.  The 

district allows duplexes, live/work units, single-family attached, and single-family detached dwellings, 

but does not allow mobile homes, manufactured homes, or conservation subdivisions.  As a means of 

creating compact, functional neighborhoods, the district also allows a wide variety of institutional uses, 

including community centers, day care, schools, assisted living, religious institutions, parks, and 

utilities.  Lots served by public sewer may have reduced minimum lot sizes and building height is 

measured from the base flood elevation.  District regulations are intended to support the County’s 

investment in infrastructure by encouraging the development of compact, vibrant neighborhoods with a 

variety of house sizes and types that are located in close proximity to complementary institutional uses. 

Low density development comprised of uniform building types or styles is discouraged.

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

PROJECT LOCATION:

 

Vicinity Map:  Courthouse Township 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

SITE DATA 

 

 

Lot size:   Lots 9 – 28 and a portion of lot 29 approximately 25 acres in Camden                              

                                                Business Park.                          

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Highway Commercial (HC)  

Existing Land Uses:  Camden Business Park (33 lots) – Lot 33 is only developed.  Remaining  

    32 lots are vacant. 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning  Rural Residential 

(RR)  

 Light Industrial 

(LI) 

 Highway 

Commercial (HC) 

Highway 

Commercial (HC)  

Use & size  Camden Crossing 

Subdivision 

Farmland  Farmland  Commercial 

Building/County 

Office’s 

 

Proposed Use(s):  Residential.    

 

Description/History of property:    Camden Business was recorded in June 2008 consisting of 33 

commercial lots.  Lot 33 was only lot developed as a strip mall, currently occupied by Camden County 

Library and a Martial Arts Studio.  Remaining lots went into foreclosure (except lots 7-10) and most of 

the remaining lots were purchased by Mr. Robert Krainiak.  Waterlines exists.   

  

      

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:     
Distance & description of nearest outfall:    Property seems to drain east to the railroad tracks then 

west out to Sawyer’s Creek.   Distance approximately 1 mile. 

. 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

Zoning Map: 

 

 
 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

Floodplain Map 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

 

Water Waterlines exist within the development. 

 

Sewer              Sewer lines located adjacent to property along U.S 158. 

 

Fire District   South Camden. 

 

Schools              Proposed zoning will have an impact on Schools.     

 

Traffic   Traffic Impact Analysis required at development stage.  

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.   

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the Future Land Use Maps has property identified as 

Industrial.   

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☒ 

   
The proposed zoning change is inconsistent and consistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012).  

 

Inconsistent as Future Land Use Map shows the property designated as Mixed Use Employment which 

based on the description (see Attachment A) prohibits residential development.    

 

Consistent in that based on the Vision Statement new development will be focused within targeted core 

areas, the Camden Village Core Action Strategies promotes the 158 corridor for new mixed use and 

higher density development, and Priority Action item 5 promotes updating UDO based on key 

amendments listed.   UDO update approved on February 4, 2019.  (see Attachment B). 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

  

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners:  N/A 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or 

welfare? 

 

Reasoning:      The proposed zoning change will enhance the public 

health, safety, or welfare as it will allow for higher density residential uses 

to support commercial uses nearby, with the availability of water and 

sewer.  Sewer runs along U.S. 158.   

 

 

 

Is the entire range of  permitted uses in the requested classification 

more appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification? 

 

Reasoning:   The range of uses in the new Village Residential zoning 

district allows for limited commercial along with a higher density 

residential development where water and sewer are available.  Attached is 

letter from Camden Water & Sewer stating that water and sewer is 

avaialble.   

 

The 2035 Comprehensive  Plan overall strategy is to focus commercial 

growth in and around the village centers and higher density residential 

thus  maintaining the rural character of the lands away from the villages.   

 

 

For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major 

arterial roads:    

 

 

 

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same 

classification?   New Zoning Classification 

 

Reasoning:     
 

 

What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met 

by this application?   

 

Reasoning:  

 

 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, 

or unusual disturbances? 

 

 

Reasoning:   In staffs opinion, the uses in the requested zoning 

classification will not cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances.  

 

 

Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern? 

 

 

Reasoning:  Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern. 

 

 

 

Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested? 

 

 

Reasoning:    This is a new zoning classification to allow for higher 

development in locations in and around village centers. 

 

 

 

Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for 

the proposed uses? 

 

 

Reasoning:    Based on the Village Residential (VR) Purpose Statement 

listed in the UDO, this and other areas are appropriate for the proposed 

uses.  

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities: 

 

The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public facilities, how 

much and what facilities will be determined at the development of the 

property. 

 

Schools –     

 

Fire and Rescue –   

 

Law Enforcement –   

 

Parks & Recreation –   

 

Traffic Circulation or Parking –  

 

Other County Facilities –  

 

 

 

Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation 

Of Community Benefits?

 

 

If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) – Applicants Reasoning: 

 

 

 

 Personal Benefits/Impact Community Benefits/Impact 
 

With rezoning 

 

 

  
 

  

 

Without rezoning 

 

 

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

STAFF COMMENTARY:    

 

Planning Staff makes the following recommendations for either approval or denial: 

 

Consistency Statement:   

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan in that the 

CAMA Future Land Use Maps has property identified as Industrial; also 

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent and consistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 

2012); 

 

Inconsistent as Future Land Use Map shows the property designated as Mixed Use Employment which 

based on the description (see Attachment A) prohibits residential development.    

 

Consistent as based on the Vision Statement new development will be focused within targeted core 

areas and the Camden Village Core Area Action Strategies promotes the 158 corridor for new mixed use 

and higher density development.  Property located within the 1 mile buffer of Core Village where 

county encouraging higher density housing mix.    

 

 

Application: 

 

Motion for approval:  Recommend approval of proposed rezoning application (UDO 2019-10-24) to 

rezone properties from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential as rezoning request is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as based on the Vision Statement new 

development will be focused within targeted core areas and the Camden Village Core Area Action 

Strategies promotes the U.S. 158 corridor for new mixed use and higher density development.  Property 

located within the 1 mile buffer of Core Village where county encouraging higher density housing mix.    

.   

 

Motion for denial:   Recommend denial of Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-10-24) to rezone property 

from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR) as rezoning request is inconsistent with   

the CAMA Land Use Plan in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has property identified as 

Industrial.   

 

If recommendation is for approval need the following motion: 

 

Motion to amend Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the 24 acres from Mixed-Use 

Employment to Village Mixed Use.   

 

 

 

 

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



` 

 

At their November 20, 2019 meeting, the Planning Board after discussion with staff and applicant 

made the following motions: 

 

1.  Motion made to approve Consistency Statement as follows:  

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan in that the 

CAMA Future Land Use Maps has property identified as Industrial; also 

 

- The proposed zoning change is inconsistent and consistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 

2012); 

 

Inconsistent as Future Land Use Map shows the property designated as Mixed Use Employment which 

based on the description (see Attachment A) prohibits residential development.    

 

Consistent as based on the Vision Statement new development will be focused within targeted core 

areas and the Camden Village Core Area Action Strategies promotes the 158 corridor for new mixed use 

and higher density development.  Property located within the 1 mile buffer of Core Village where 

county encouraging higher density housing mix.    

 

2. Motion made to recommend approval of proposed rezoning application (UDO 2019-10-24) to 

rezone properties from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential as rezoning request is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as based on the Vision Statement new 

development will be focused within targeted core areas and the Camden Village Core Area 

Action Strategies promotes the U.S. 158 corridor for new mixed use and higher density 

development.  Property located within the 1 mile buffer of Core Village where county 

encouraging higher density housing mix.     

 

3. Motion made Motion to amend Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the 24 acres from 

Mixed-Use Employment to Village Mixed Use.   

 

12.E.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

ra
in

ia
k 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
25

75
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



12.E.c

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-12-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The properties currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN’s  02-8945-00-09-6923, 02-8946-00-00-4274, 02-8945-00-09-4898, 02-8946-

00-00-3266, 02-8945-00-09-3830, 02-8946-00-00-2144, 02-8945-00-09-9853, 02-

8945-00-09-2926, 02-8945-00-09-8967, 02-8946-00-10-2095, 02-8946-00-00-

8019, 02-8946-00-10-1220, 02-8946-00-00-7149, 02-8946-00-10-0450, 02-8946-

00-00-6481, 02-8946-00-10-05334, 02-89446-00-00-65342 are hereby re-zoned 

from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential.   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

12.E.d

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ra

in
ia

k 
 (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g



 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this       day of        ,                                

2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.E.d

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

12
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ra

in
ia

k 
 (

25
75

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
12

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 13.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Senior Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Senior Advisory Board 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Sandra Duckwall be reappointed to the Senior Advisory Board for an 

additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

13.A

Packet Pg. 141



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_110419 (DOCX) 

 

14.A

Packet Pg. 142



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

November 4, 2019 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on November 4, 2019 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.  Commissioner Garry Meiggs arrived at 6:07 PM. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

   

The Board came out of Closed Session at 6:25 PM and was recessed by the Chairman until 7:00 PM. 

 

At 7:00 PM Chairman White reconvened the Board of Commissioners for its regular meeting and welcomed 

everyone in attendance. 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Ross Munro gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

None. 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



2 

 

ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA        

 

Amendment to the Agenda – Add County Manager Salary/Leave to New Business as Item 5.D. 

 

Motion to approve the agenda with the amendment. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 

& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

   

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – David Credle 

 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



3 

 

 
 

Mr. Credle also included the following in his report: 

 Average usage of SMWA for October was 73,000 gallons/day. 

 October 27, 2019 – Pumps were changed at the Courthouse sewer pump station and wastewater flow was 

redirected to the new wastewater treatment facility. 

 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Chairman White reconvened the meeting of the board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 4. PUBLIC HEARINGS          

 

A. Ordinance 2019-10-01 Rezoning Application 

 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for Ordinance 2019-10-01 Rezoning Application. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Planning Director Dan Porter presented the rezoning application Staff Report and Findings. 

 

   

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



4 

 

   
 

   
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



5 

 

   
 

   
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



6 

 

   
 

 
 

Mr. Waverly Sawyer, the applicant, addressed the Board and stated that he has no intentions of adding any other 

commercial use to the property other than the building currently situated on the property.   

 

There were no further comments from the public in support of, or opposition to, the rezoning request. 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



7 

 

 

Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to add Ordinance 2019-10-01 Rezoning Application to New Business as Item 5.E. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

B. Ordinance 2019-08-02 UDO Amendments 

 

Motion to open the Public Hearing for Ordinance 2019-08-02 UDO Amendments. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Planning Director Dan Porter presented the following to the Board: 

 

After six (6) months of operating with the new Unified Development Ordinance, staff has identified a few issues that 

need minor changes, clarification, or reconsideration.  The attached ordinance is a compilation of excerpts from 

various chapters with the changes numbered and highlighted.  Also attached is a brief explanation with reasons for 

recommended changes and a copy of zoning maps for each township. 
 

At the September 18th and October 16th Planning Board meetings Staff and Planning Board reviewed and discussed 

each item and made a motion recommending approving of all the changes.  It should be noted that there was 

considerable discussion on reasons numbers 5 and 11 regarding Manufactured Homes and Subdivisions along major 

arterial highways.   

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



8 

 

   

 
Mr. Porter also entered into record the following correspondence from Brad Lovin, Executive Director of the North 

Carolina Manufactured and Modular Homebuilders Association (NCMHA): 

 

   
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



9 

 

There were no further comments from the public in support of, or in opposition to, the proposed amendments to the 

Unified Development Ordinance. 

 

Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to add Ordinance 2019-08-02 UDO Amendments to New Business as Item 5.F. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 5. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Monthly Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



10 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



11 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



12 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

B. Step & Grade Salary Scale  

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the Step & Grade Salary Scale to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

The Step & Grade Salary Scale is proposed as a result of a Classification and Compensation study that was 

performed by Springsted Incorporated in 2008. The recommendations from this study were never fully implemented 

which has resulted in a situation called Pay Compression. This often happens when current employee pay raises 

don't keep up with increases in the market pay rate-resulting in a situation in which new hires are hired in at levels 

similar to employees who have been with the organization for many years. 

 

The periodic review, which comes with completion of a comprehensive classification and compensation update, 

enables an organization to account for changes in use of technology, changes in work processes, tools and 

equipment, and other factors that can affect job responsibilities.  In today’s fast-paced world of technological 

change, this is especially important as almost every governmental process is affected by advancements in 

technology and, as this occurs, employees’ skills, knowledge, and abilities, as well as their proficiency in the use of 

required tools and equipment, changes. Changes in job requirements, such as addition of new programs or 

assumption of duties for a vacated position, sometimes results in a new pay grade assignment. In order to properly 

maintain the compensation system, an ongoing process is needed to review job responsibilities and job class 

assignment to pay grades to ensure jobs are properly compensated.  As the County continues to experience growth 

and change, it will also be important to offer competitive salaries to attract the best staff possible to serve the 

citizens of Camden County. 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



13 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Step & Grade Salary Scale as presented to go into effect January 1, 2020. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

C. Finance Officer Appointment – Ken Bowman 

 

A number of highly qualified applicants were interviewed to fill the Finance Officer vacancy.  Stephanie Jackson, 

currently the Interim Finance Officer, was recommended by the interview panel for appointment. 

 

Motion to appoint Stephanie Jackson as Finance Officer effective November 4, 2019 with a salary of $65,922. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

D. County Manager Salary / Leave 

 

Chairman White stated that a review of the County Manager’s performance evaluation had been discussed during 

Closed Session.  As a result of that discussion, the agenda was amended to allow for the addition of this item for 

consideration by the Board. 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



14 

 

Motion to accept and approve the annual evaluation of the County Manager with a 7 percent salary increase 

and 80 additional hours of vacation leave, effective January 1, 2010 and to amend the current contract 

accordingly. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

E. Ordinance 2019-10-01 Rezoning Application  

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs requested to be recused from consideration of this matter due to family ties to the 

applicant.  He stated that he in no way has any financial or ownership interests, or otherwise, relating to the property 

being considered in the application. 

 

Motion to allow Commissioner Meiggs to be recused from consideration of Ordinance 2019-10-01 Rezoning 

Application. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

  

Commissioner Meiggs did not participate in any discussion or consideration of this matter.   

 

Motion that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the CAMA Land Use Plans Executive Summary 

policies P.22 and P.23 for commercial/industrial as Policies P.22 and P.23 state Camden County supports 

industrial development along major thoroughfares and that are accessible to water/sewer.   

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

RECUSED: Meiggs 

  

Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-10-01 to rezone properties from Working Lands (WL) to Highway 

Commercial (HC) as zoning change is consistent with policies P.22 and P.23 of the CAMA Plan as Camden 

County supports industrial development along major thoroughfares that are accessible to water/sewer. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

RECUSED: Meiggs 

  

Motion to amend the Future Land Use Maps of the Comprehensive Plan and CAMA Land Use Plan. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

RECUSED: Meiggs 

  

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



15 

 

 
 

F. Ordinance 2019-08-02 

 

Motion to approve the UDO Amendments as recommended by Planning Board and Staff. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



16 

 

 
 

 
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



17 

 

 
 

 
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



18 

 

 
 

 
  

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



19 

 

 
 

             
 

ITEM 6. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Jury Commission – Gale Perry (Reappointment) 

 

Motion to reappoint Gale Perry to the Jury Commission. 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



20 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

B. South Camden Fire Commission  

 George Tarkington & William Forehand (reappointments; 2-year term) 

 Zenas Jennings (appointment; 1-year term) 

 

Motion to reappointment George Tarkington & William Forehand for a 2-year term and appoint Zenas 

Jennings for a 1-year term.   

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

C. East Albemarle Regional Library Board – Nona Smith (appointment) 

 

Motion to appoint Nona Smith to the East Albemarle Regional Library Board. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

ITEM 7. CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – October 7, 2019 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2019 

C. Budget Amendment  

 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



21 

 

D. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

E. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



22 

 

F. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

G. FEMA – Designation of Applicant’s Agent 

 
 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



23 

 

H. Resolution 2019-11-01 

 

 
 

I. Set Public Hearing – Land Sale Agreement 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 8. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

 NCACC District I Meeting - November 5th; Chairman White and County Manager to attend. 

 Veterans Day Celebration – November 8th; 11:00 AM at the Courthouse. 

 Veterans Day Holiday – November 11th, County Offices Closed. 

 2019 NC Rural Assembly – November 21st-22nd; County Manager to attend in Raleigh. 

 Thanksgiving Holidays – November 28th-29th; County Offices closed. 

 Christmas Tree Lighting – December 2nd at 5:30; Courthouse Lawn. 

 Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – December 2nd; 10:00 AM 

 Appreciation to the Board of Commissioners and Staff 

 

ITEM 9. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs – Recently attended the first of several NCACC President’s Pathways Initiative 

Taskforce meetings in Winston-Salem.  The initiative involves findings ways to better serve underachieving 

students. 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



24 

 

ITEM 10. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

The following was provided for information purposes: 

 

A. Library Report 

 

ITEM 11. OTHER MATTERS          

 

None. 

 

ITEM 12. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White adjourned the meeting of the Camden County Board 

of Commissioners at 8:12 PM. 

 

 

            

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

     

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

11
04

19
  (

25
84

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 4

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.B 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: Vehicle Monthly Report (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report  January, 2020 Renewals Due 2/15/20 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

14.B

Packet Pg. 167



14.B.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

68
 :

 D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.C 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Refunds Over $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 October, 2019  

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

14.C

Packet Pg. 169



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

 (
25

67
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.D 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Vehicle refunds Over $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00   

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

14.D

Packet Pg. 171



14.D.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 r

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

 (
25

66
 :

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.E 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property Request - Sheriff's Office 

 

Attachments: Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office (PDF) 

 

14.E

Packet Pg. 173



14.E.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 S
h

er
if

f's
 O

ff
ic

e 
 (

25
81

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
S

h
er

if
f's

 O
ff

ic
e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.F 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-12-02 

 

Attachments: Resolution Opposing Jurisdictional Waters

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Find attached Resolution Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters.  The proposed 

Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters would create a loss of approximately 144,984 square 

acres or 226.5 miles of coastal and commercial fishing waters, therefore significantly impacting 

the local commercial fishing economy. 

Recommendation: 

Approve.   

14.F

Packet Pg. 175



 

Resolution No. 2019-12-02 

Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters 
 

WHEREAS, in January of 2019, the NC Marine Fisheries Commission (MFC) and the NC 

Wildlife Resources Commission (WRC) formed a joint committee for the purpose of determining 

boundaries defining inland and coastal waters; and 

 

WHEREAS, the joint committee had its last meeting in May of 2019, after having disagreements 

between the agencies on the “salinity value” to determine boundaries; and 

  

WHEREAS, in August of 2019, the WRC business meeting was held with little direct notice to 

the MFC or to the NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ). At this meeting the WRC 

decided to move forward with the proposed boundaries based on the arbitrary “2.6 ppt salinity value”; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2017 the MFC conducted a review of rules pertaining to delineation (15A NCAC 

03Q .0200 et seq) and determined there was no basis to adjust jurisdictional boundaries; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters would be a loss of 

approximately 144,984 square acres or 226.5 sq. miles of coastal and commercial fishing waters. Thus, 

creating even more confusion and regulations to the already over regulated NC commercial fishing 

industry; and 

 

WHEREAS, the MFC would be required by law, to perform a comprehensive financial analysis 

to modify jurisdictional boundaries, which would include a review of all existing rules and a detailed 

mapping effort expected to take over a year to complete with added costs to the taxpayers of North 

Carolina; and 

   

WHEREAS, the financial impact as proposed would exceed $1,000,000.00 for sustainable 

economic impact as prescribed in the NC Administrative Procedure Act; and 

  

WHEREAS, fisheries management plans of important commercial and recreational species under 

MFC authority follow a criterion initially to establish coastal and joint waters but not inland waters.  

Thus, a complete review of all MFC rules would have to be completed at NC taxpayer expense. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Camden County Board of Commissioners strongly 

opposes the Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters as prescribed by the NC Wildlife Resources 

Commission.  Under such research we have not found where a Salinity Value is a determination of 

boundary lines between coastal and inland waterways.  

 
Adopted this the 2nd day of December, 2019. 

 

             

Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

14.F.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 O
p

p
o

si
n

g
 J

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
al

 W
at

er
s 

 (
25

88
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

12
-0

2 
O

p
p

o
si

n
g

 R
ec

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

al
 W

at
er

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 14.G 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Emergency Management 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program (SARF) 

 

Attachments: Camden County State Acquisition Relocation Fund 

Program (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Submitted by Christy Saunders of Emergency Management. 

Resolution, Ordinance and Policy to be utilized during the administration of the Camden 

County State Acquisition Relocation Fund (SARF) Program.    

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

14.G

Packet Pg. 177



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



14.G.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
25

80
 :

 S
ta

te
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 (
S

A
R

F
))



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Repoirts & Minutes from Other Agencies  

 

Item Number: 17.A 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 10/2019 

 

Attachments: 19-10 (DOCX) 

 

17.A

Packet Pg. 185



Camden County Public Library 

October 2019 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 2,335 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,932 

Computer/ Wireless Use 749/791 

Questions Answered 634 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 24/462 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 4/32 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 5/366 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 12/97 

Days/Hours Open 30/264 

# Items in Collection 18,712 

Library Card Holders 2,538 

 

Comparison by Year 

2017-2019 

    

           

4,113 4,047 3,932

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Oct 2017 Oct 2018 Oct 2019

Circulation

1,922
2,085

2,335

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Oct 2017 Oct 2018 Oct 2019

Attendance

17.A.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

9-
10

  (
25

77
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Repoirts & Minutes from Other Agencies  

 

Item Number: 17.B 

Meeting Date:   December 02, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

17.B

Packet Pg. 187



17.B.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

62
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



17.B.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
25

62
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 
	Colonel Rodney Meads, Chaplain - Camden County Sheriff's Office

	I. Public Comments
	II. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	III. Consideration of the Agenda
	IV. Election of Chairman to the Board
	V. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board
	VI. Bond Approval
	A. 2576 : Bond Approval
	Printout: 2576 : Bond Approval
	a. Bonds


	VII. 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar
	A. 2571 : Resolution Adopting Regular Meeting Schedule
	Printout: 2571 : Resolution Adopting Regular Meeting Schedule
	a. Resolution 2019-12-01 Adopting A New Regular Meeting Schedule
	b. 2020 Meeting Calendar


	VIII. 2020 State Holiday Schedule
	A. 2569 : 2020 State Holiday Schedule
	Printout: 2569 : 2020 State Holiday Schedule
	a. 2020 State Holiday Schedule


	IX. Presentations
	A. 2570 : NC Cooperative Extension - Cameron Lowe
	Printout: 2570 : NC Cooperative Extension - Cameron Lowe

	B. 2572 : Sheriff's Office - Brandon Blount
	Printout: 2572 : Sheriff's Office - Brandon Blount

	C. 2578 : Camden TDA Photo Contest - Donna Stewart
	Printout: 2578 : Camden TDA Photo Contest - Donna Stewart


	X. Public Hearings
	A. 2586 : Camden Plantation, Inc. Land Sale Agreement - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2586 : Camden Plantation, Inc. Land Sale Agreement - Ken Bowman
	a. Agenda Summary_Camden Plantation
	b. Public Notice Daily Advance Camden County
	c. Camden Purchase Agreement for Commercial Property 10-29-19 signed by buyer


	XI. Old Business
	A. 2587 : Library Lease - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 2587 : Library Lease - Ken Bowman
	a. Library Lease Rev 11 25 19


	XII. New Business
	A. 2573 : Proclamation - Radon Action Month January 2020
	Printout: 2573 : Proclamation - Radon Action Month January 2020
	a. Proclamation Request
	b. RadonandLungCancerFactsheet(color)Rev-Final (1)
	c. Proclamation - Radon Action Month

	B. 2582 : NC Governor's Highway Safety Program Traffic Grant - Sheriff Jones
	Printout: 2582 : NC Governor's Highway Safety Program Traffic Grant - Sheriff Jones
	a. Traffic Grant

	C. 2579 : Camden Solar Special Use Permit - Extension Request (One Year)
	Printout: 2579 : Camden Solar Special Use Permit - Extension Request (One Year)
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet SUP Camden Solar
	b. Extension Request

	D. 2585 : Commerce Park Electric Service
	Printout: 2585 : Commerce Park Electric Service
	a. Agenda Summary Commerce Park Electrical Service
	b. Status of electrical in Commerce Park email
	c. AEMC Contract
	d. Budget Amendment

	E. 2575 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-12-01 Rezoning Application
	Printout: 2575 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-12-01 Rezoning Application
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-12-01 Krainiak
	b. Krainiak Rezoning Findings
	c. Supporting documents
	d. 2019-12-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Krainiak


	XIII. Board Appointments
	A. 2574 : Senior Advisory Board - Sandra Duckwall (Reappointment)
	Printout: 2574 : Senior Advisory Board - Sandra Duckwall (Reappointment)


	XIV. Consent Agenda
	A. 2584 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019
	Printout: 2584 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019
	a. bocminutes_110419

	B. 2568 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2568 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. Vehicle Monthly Report

	C. 2567 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2567 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Refunds Over $100.00

	D. 2566 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2566 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Vehicle refunds Over $100.00

	E. 2581 : Surplus Property Request - Sheriff's Office
	Printout: 2581 : Surplus Property Request - Sheriff's Office
	a. Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office

	F. 2588 : Resolution 2019-12-02 Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters
	Printout: 2588 : Resolution 2019-12-02 Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters
	a. Resolution Opposing Jurisdictional Waters

	G. 2580 : State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program (SARF)
	Printout: 2580 : State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program (SARF)
	a. Camden County State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program


	XV. County Manager's Report
	XVI. Commissioners' Reports
	XVII. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 2577 : Library Report
	Printout: 2577 : Library Report
	a. 19-10

	B. 2562 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2562 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Closed Session - Personnel
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	XVIII. Other Matters
	XIX. Adjourn

	Appendix
	6.A · 2576 : Bond Approval
	6.A.a · Bonds

	7.A · 2571 : Resolution Adopting Regular Meeting Schedule
	7.A.a · Resolution 2019-12-01 Adopting A New Regular Meeting Schedule
	7.A.b · 2020 Meeting Calendar

	8.A · 2569 : 2020 State Holiday Schedule
	8.A.a · 2020 State Holiday Schedule

	9.A · 2570 : NC Cooperative Extension - Cameron Lowe
	9.B · 2572 : Sheriff's Office - Brandon Blount
	9.C · 2578 : Camden TDA Photo Contest - Donna Stewart
	10.A · 2586 : Camden Plantation, Inc. Land Sale Agreement - Ken Bowman
	10.A.a · Agenda Summary_Camden Plantation
	10.A.b · Public Notice Daily Advance Camden County
	10.A.c · Camden Purchase Agreement for Commercial Property 10-29-19 signed by buyer

	11.A · 2587 : Library Lease - Ken Bowman
	11.A.a · Library Lease Rev 11 25 19

	12.A · 2573 : Proclamation - Radon Action Month January 2020
	12.A.a · Proclamation Request
	12.A.b · RadonandLungCancerFactsheet(color)Rev-Final (1)
	12.A.c · Proclamation - Radon Action Month

	12.B · 2582 : NC Governor's Highway Safety Program Traffic Grant - Sheriff Jones
	12.B.a · Traffic Grant

	12.C · 2579 : Camden Solar Special Use Permit - Extension Request (One Year)
	12.C.a · Agenda Summary Sheet SUP Camden Solar
	12.C.b · Extension Request

	12.D · 2585 : Commerce Park Electric Service
	12.D.a · Agenda Summary Commerce Park Electrical Service
	12.D.b · Status of electrical in Commerce Park email
	12.D.c · AEMC Contract
	12.D.d · Budget Amendment

	12.E · 2575 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-12-01 Rezoning Application
	12.E.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-12-01 Krainiak
	12.E.b · Krainiak Rezoning Findings
	12.E.c · Supporting documents
	12.E.d · 2019-12-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Krainiak

	13.A · 2574 : Senior Advisory Board - Sandra Duckwall (Reappointment)
	14.A · 2584 : BOC Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019
	14.A.a · bocminutes_110419

	14.B · 2568 : DMV Monthly Report
	14.B.a · Vehicle Monthly Report

	14.C · 2567 : Refunds Over $100.00
	14.C.a · Refunds Over $100.00

	14.D · 2566 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	14.D.a · Vehicle refunds Over $100.00

	14.E · 2581 : Surplus Property Request - Sheriff's Office
	14.E.a · Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office

	14.F · 2588 : Resolution 2019-12-02 Opposing Reclassification of Jurisdictional Waters
	14.F.a · Resolution Opposing Jurisdictional Waters

	14.G · 2580 : State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program (SARF)
	14.G.a · Camden County State Acquisition Relocation Fund Program

	17.A · 2577 : Library Report
	17.A.a · 19-10

	17.B · 2562 : Register of Deeds Report
	17.B.a · Register of Deeds Report



